

1834-009

SOUTHAMPTON COUNTY
CHANCERY PAPERS

VICK et al
Vick et al

VS. BEVAN and Wife
vs Bevan & ux & al

11/1834

See also: Bevan, By Friend v. Bevan et al, 1834-4

Bevan et ux v. Vick et al 1830-2

other surnames: Rochelle

Vicks

47 { Papers

Bevan &c

1832 Sep: Will filed

1833. Aug. Ans. L. Bevan &c
 " " set for hearing as to other
 debts on bonds &c

1834, March 19: Sci fa: issued to verify
 in the name of John Wick adm. of
 Daniel Wick dec.

" July Revised & leave to amend
 bill & make new parties -

" Oct. Decree &c

Shiff's costs

coll.	\$5.13
Shiff.	1.50
Law fee	16.66
W. tax	75
	\$22.97
	\$24.08

Tucker's notes

Vol 2 p 338

Dargstaff's Rair
 and wife & Wilson's
 Reports -

Shiff ought to be

partly -

Early return

6 Rair

John & Annie Nick

O.S.

Brown & wife

Bill in Chancery

September 3/1832

Parker p. q.

To the Honorable Robert B. Taylor, Judge of the
circuit superior court of law and chancery, for the county
of Southampton, in chancery sitting

Humly complaining then unto your Honor your orator
John Vick and Manue Vick that as securities of Norathy
B. Vick before his intermarriage with Thomas Beran &
Benjamin Gaffin executors of Joseph Vick deceased they
were sued in the county courts of Southampton and
a judgment obtained against them for the sum of

which they were compelled to pay
and costs thereof as will appear by a copy of the
judgment execution and return of the sheriff herewith
exhibited and prayed to be taken as a part of
this bill; that in order to recover back the amount
thus paid they made a motion ~~in court~~ against
the said Norathy B. then the wife of Thomas Beran,
and the said Thomas Beran in the same court
and obtained judgment and award of execution and
they being taken under a ~~case~~ waived themselves
of the act for the relief of insolvent debtors, took
the oath prescribed by the said act and read
up their respective schedules and were regularly
discharged the said Norathy B. Beran having
first executed a deed conveying her interest
^{in two tracts of land in the county of Southampton} ~~in the county of Southampton~~ sold as against
all of which will more fully appear by reference
to an authenticated copy of the said proceedings
herewith exhibited and prayed to be taken as a
part of this bill. - Your orator charges that the
personal property surrendered in the said schedule
sold for a paucity and inconsiderable sum, by
no means sufficient to satisfy their demand
and that the sheriff has been prevented from proce-
ding to sell the land conveyed by the said Norathy
B. by various frivolous objections urged by the said

Before a some other persons interested in the matter
and your orators being called upon to indemnify have
thought it advisable to decline doing so that
rather to drag the question in dispute to this
honorable court for judgment; Among other points
it is urged that the said Dorothy B. being a
married woman would not execute a deed and
that her deed to the sheriff before referred to is
a mere nullity, your orators ^{are} advised that this
objection is not a substantive and legal one
in as much as a married woman being subject to
a personal execution for a debt contracted previous
to her marriage could execute a deed
and comply with all the other requirements of the act
for the relief of insolvent debtors might be
imprisoned in prison for life, the act requiring a
deed where real estate is involved in the schedule
in all cases and making no exception in respect
to married women - Under this view of the subject
your orators contend that the instrument aforesaid
ought to be maintained as a good and valid
deed transferring all the interest which the
said Dorothy B. held in the said real estate

Your orators further charge that before the
marriage of the said Dorothy B. with the said
Thomas Brown they entered into articles of agreement
a copy of which is herewith exhibited and may be
taken as a part of this case, from which
it will appear that the said Dorothy B. was
as the power of conveying all her property
during the coverture by deed or otherwise so that
in her case the objection before referred to even if
a valid one would not apply - Your orators
therefore pray that the said Thomas Brown

and Dorothy B. may be made defendants hereto
with apt and proper words to charge them and that
they may answer the premises fully and truly - That
the sheriff of this county may be directed to see
the interest of the said Dorothy B. and Thomas Brown
if any he has, in the said two tracts of land
held by the said Dorothy B. in right of dower
and what other interest may be conveyed by
the said deed is surrendered by the said schedule
and that your honor may grant such other further
general relief touching the premises as may be
consistent with justice and equity and the na-
ture of the case requires and grant the common-
wealth writ of subpoena &c.

And your orators will ever pray -

Parker Jr. g.

Rock

vs

Brown & wife

amended bill

To the honorable Richard H. Baker judge of the
circuit superior court of law and chancery for
the county of Southampton in chancery sitting

Humly complaining shew unto your
honor your orator Esten Vick in his own
right and as administrator of Deane Vick
deceased, that your said orator and
Daniel Vick in his life time instituted a
suit in this honorable court against
Thomas Bevan & his wife Dorothy
At that the same came on to be heard
on the bill answer and exhibits, upon
consideration whereof, it was deemed
proper to make the Sheriff of the County
of Southampton a party before a
final decree could be had, & leave
was obtained by the plaintiffs to file an
amended bill for that purpose - That
after the institution of the said bill in
Daniel Vick deposed that life interest
& your orator qualified as his executor
your orator therefore prays that ^{elements} ~~the~~
Rockville
Bowers
Sheriff of the County of Southampton, to

where the capias & solus facienda refer
to in the original bill was directed, under
which the defendant took the oaths of
cardinal debtors, may be made a defendant
thereto with apt and proper words to charge
him, & that he may answer the premises, &
especially state what proceedings were
had under the execution against the
debtors directed against the said Thomas
Thoson & Dorothy & his wife, & that
your honor will grant such other
further & general relief touching the
premises, as to your honor may seem
right & expedient, & your honor will
~~may~~ ~~may~~

Peter Key

Vick

v 3 anam

Brown H

~~December 22^d 1832~~

(Gray)

The answer of Thomas Bivam to the bill exhibited
to him & Dorothy N. his wife by John Nick & Daniel
Nick in the superior court of law & chancery for
the county of Southampton. The said respondent
saying and answering all right of exceptions to
the writ & in answer of the plaintiffs bills &
for as much thereof as he is advised it is meet
any he should answer Says that it is true
he was taken in execution for the debt as
stated in the plaintiffs bill from which he
discharges himself by the benefit of the act
for the relief of insolvent debtors and gave
in a schedule as stated and the said respon-
dent says that the said Dorothy N. Bivam his
wife being under execution for the said debt
gave security for the bounds of the prison
of Southampton and broke the same, was
after taken in custody by the Sheriff and
discharged under the act for the benefit
of insolvent debtors This respondent further
says that the property received in the sale
of Dorothy N. Bivam is considerable & has been
and subjected to the payment of the said exe-

action by sale or other wise That as to two
tracts of land or the interest in the
same conveyed by the said Dorothy N. Bowen
he knows nothing of save the down interest
of the said Dorothy in the land on
which this respondent lives and which
was assigned him by the decree of the
county court of Southampton in right
of his wife formerly Dorothy N. Wick some
months after their marriage and long after
the marriage articles referred to in the plain-
tiffs bill had been entered into & recorded
and this respondent answering says that he
had (previous to taking the oath of
insolvency at the suit of the plaintiffs
in this case) been taken in execution at
the suit of Thomas D. Heath's representa-
tives & had given in a schedule of all
the property he had in describing any & all
interest he claimed in or by the marriage
with the said Dorothy N. Wick denying
all said ~~conveyance~~ & having answered prayer
to be dismissed -

Thomas Bowen

Sworn to before me a justice of
the peace for the county of Southampton this 22nd day
December 1832 - Wm. Sparkes J.P.

dem Rochelle.
answert. -

and Waddell & the sale failed; and the pliffs. on application refused
to indemnify the shiff according to law: that the pliffs for the
said ~~Edward~~ ^{Edward} ~~Edw. Sa.~~ by their note in writing to Edward Butts, Esq.
authorized and directed that he said Dorothy M. Beman should
be permitted to retain the household ^{property} contained in her said
schedule and that they would not hold the shiff liable
for any waste of her: This deff. says that no sale of the
lands mentioned in the schedule was ever made, nor was
one particle of the personal property. That ~~he~~ ^{he} was advised that
he could not legally sell the said lands, and hence no sale
was made. Nor has he ever been called upon to make
sale. This deff. refers to the records and proceedings in
the County Court of Southampton, in the case of ~~Deeds~~ ^{Deeds} v.
Beman & wife, where the detailed matter and progress in
relation to the ~~proceedings~~ ^{proceedings} under the said Edw. Sa.
will be found, and which he says they received as
a part of his answer. This defendant denies that he
is responsible in any way or manner to the pliffs. - he has
after a lapse of time endeavored to make a true
statement of the transactions in relation to the said
Edw. Sa. so far as he has had any agency, and
has given as he believes a true history and account of the
proceedings, as he has been required by the amiable
to do, under the execution aforesaid.
This deff. says it is not true, that any part of
the real or personal property mentioned in the aforesaid
Schedules were ever sold by him. This deff. ~~even~~
~~states that~~ ^{having answered} promptly he furnished
with his reasonable costs sustained
without that that of.
(signed)

Edw D Butts depy of
Clerk Ro Chubb late
Shriff

Suon to his

Rock

vs

Bewan

This subpoena in this cause against the
defendant Dorothy M Bewan, having been
executed ~~more~~ ^{than} four months, and she
still failing to appear, ^{file her answer} the bill as to that
defendant is taken for confessed, and the
cause came on to be heard on the ^{amended & original} bill the answer
of the defendant Thomas Bewan, with a
replication thereto, the answer of the defendant
Clements Rockelle, to whom no replication
has been filed, together with the exhibits
referred to and ~~was~~ argued by counsel
on ~~which~~ ^{whereof} the least ~~both~~
adjudgments and decrees being of opinion
that the ^{for} property ^{on the schedules as appears} ~~mentioned~~ in the proceedings
mentioned is still liable for the plaintiffs
demand, doth adjudge order and decree
that Edward & Butts late deputy of Clements
Rockelle late Sheriff of the County of
Southampton, do sell at public auction
after giving ten ^{days notice of the time}
and place of sale, ^{and convey to the purchaser or purchasers} the real and personal
estate ~~with~~ the interest right and title of the
defendants Thomas Bewan and Dorothy M
his wife, in and to the property both real
and personal, contained in the schedules in
the proceedings mentioned, or so much there-
of as may be necessary, and out of the proceeds
arising from the said sale
pay to the plaintiffs the sum of \$228.²⁸
with interest from the 16th of May 1831 also five
dollars and fifty four cents costs, together with the

lots of this suit and report his proceedings herein
in order to a final decree

Debt due May 16/1831 for \$221.28
 Int. till Nov. 29/1834 . 46.25
 Costs . 5.54
 273.07
 Costs . 24.08
 297.15
 Shiffe Comm^s 14.85
 \$312.00

c 450

Wicks

3 Copy Decms

Adrian P

Cam. to name of the 10/1/1834

Salifus

Loan 30 cents by
 Salim. K. O. K. K. K. K.
 high the credit

Virginia: At a Circuit Superior Court of Law and Chancery held for the County of
Southampton on the 1st day of November 1834.

John Wick in his own right and as admr. of Daniel Wick dec^d Plff.
against

In Chancery

Thomas Baran and Dorothy A his wife and John Wick, Neysamors & J^{ts}
Griffin and Clements Rochelle late high Sheriff of Southampton County J^{ts}

The Subpoena in this cause against the defendant Dorothy A Baran having been
executed more than four months and she still failing to appear and file her answer, the
bill as that defendant is taken for confessed, and the cause came on to be heard on the
~~bill~~ and original bills, the answer of the defendant Thomas Baran with a repli-
cation thereto, the answer of the defendant Clements Rochelle to which no replication
has been filed, together with the exhibits referred to, and was argued by Counsel.
On consideration whereof the Court being of opinion that the property rendered in the
Schedule as appears in the proceedings mentioned is liable for the plaintiffs demand
doth adjudge, order and decree that Edwards Butts late deputy of Clements Rochelle
late high Sheriff of the County of Southampton, do sell at public auction after giv-
ing ten days notice of the time and place of sale, and convey to the purchaser or purcha-
ser all the interest, right and title of the defendants Thomas Baran and Dorothy A
his wife, in and to the property, both real and personal, contained in the Schedule in the
proceedings mentioned or so much thereof as may be necessary, and out of the proceeds
arising from the said sale pay to the plaintiff the sum of Two hundred and twenty
one Dollars and twenty eight cents with Interest from the 16th day of May 1834, also
five dollars & fifty four cents, together with the costs of this Court, and Report his pro-
ceedings herein in order to a final decree -

Plaintiff Costs Award

Costs	\$ 5.13
Plff	1.50
Law fee	16.66
Writ fee	75
	\$ 24.03

Attest

James Rochelle Clk

C

b. 56

Vick &

to { Sp^a in lchys

Bewan &

To June Rules 1832

Parker

Executed by delivering
each defendant a
true copy, to Thos.
Bewan and John Vick
May 29/1832. to
Dorothy A. Bewan the
30th May 1832. &
Benj^a Giffin May
31/1832

William J. Drill &
Carr Bowers atty.

THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA:

To the Sheriff of Southampton County--Greeting;

We command you that you summon *Thomas Bewan and Dorothy N his wife,*
and John Nick and Benjamin Griffin _____

to appear at the Clerk's Office of our Circuit Superior Court of Law and Chancery, for the
County of Southampton, at the Rules to be holden for said Court, on the first Monday in
June next _____ to answer a bill in Chancery, exhibited against *them*
_____ in the said Court, by *John Nick and Daniel Nick.*

And unless the said Defendant shall answer the said bill within four months thereafter, the
Court will take the same for confessed, and decree the matter thereof accordingly; and this
they shall in no wise omit under the penalty of 100l.

And have then there this writ: Witness, JAMES ROCHELLE, Clerk of our said Court, at
the Courthouse, this *7th* day *May* 1832, and in the
56th year of the Commonwealth.

James Rochelle Clk

Wm. J. Lowell Esq
Brig. Genl. Army

5116
 36
 15
 506
 3180
 1518
 413

The Commonwealth of Virginia to the Sheriff of Southampton County Greeting: Whereas
John Wick and Daniel Wick have heretofore exhibited ~~their~~ to our Lieutenant Superior
Court of Law and Chancery for the County of Southampton their bill of complaint against
Thomas Bewan and Dorothy ~~at~~ his wife and John Wick and Benjamin Griffin.
whereupon Sundry proceedings have been had as appears from the records and files of
the said Court, but before a final decree could be pronounced therein the said Daniel
Wick departed this life intestate as it is said and administration of all and singular
his goods, and chattels, rights and credits have in due form been committed to John
Wick - and we being supplicated for a proper remedy in this behalf and being
willing that what is right and just should be done, do command you that you
make known to the said Thomas Bewan and Dorothy ~~at~~ his wife, and John
Wick and Benjamin Griffin that they be before the Judge of our Lieutenant Super-
ior Court of Law and Chancery for the County aforesaid at the Courthouse on the
first day of the next Term to show cause if any they have or can why the said
Suit should not be proceeded in to a final decree in the name of John Wick
administrator of Daniel Wick as aforesaid, and be in all things in the same plight
and condition as it was at the time of the death of the said Daniel Wick
and further to do and receive what our said Court shall in that part consider
And have then there this writ. Witness James Rochelle Clerk of our said
Court this the 19th day of March 1834 in the 58th year of the Commonwealth
James Rochelle Clk

In Longstaff's Reim and
wife B. R.

His bond and wife were
both taken in ~~some~~ in an
action for one apartment
alone by the wife &
a notice was made a
to discharge the wife

By the court - This matter

has been determined
that the wife is liable
to be taken in the same
& thus refused to dis-
charge the wife -

Vicks

" {

Bevan & Co

Filed with platts bill Sep.
3/1832.

(56 cents,

This Indenture tripartite made and entered into this day of September in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and twenty nine By and between Thomas Bewan of the first part Dorothy Vick of the second part, John Vick and Benj. Griffin of the third part. Whereas a marriage is intended shortly to be had and solemnized between the said Thomas Bewan and Dorothy Vick and the said Thomas Bewan being desirous to secure to the said Dorothy Vick the use and enjoyment of any property to which she is or may be entitled against the right the right which would otherwise accrue to the said Thomas by virtue of the said marriage, as also to prevent her being deprived of the same or any part thereof by means of any debts which the said Thomas may have contracted or may contract -

Now this Indenture witnesseth that the said Dorothy Vick for and in consideration of the premises, as also for and in ^{the further} consideration of one dollar to her in hand paid by the said John Vick & Benj. Griffin hath given, granted, bargained and sold and by these presents doth give grant bargain and sell unto the said John Vick & Benj. Griffin all the property of which she is at present possessed or to which she is or may be entitled hereafter, yet, all her interest in the estate of Robert Watteris dec^d. be the same lands monies, or other personally and all other property or estate which she may derive by gift, from her father Noel Waddell in his lifetime or to which she may become entitled at his death as his heir devisee, legatee or distributee and all other property which she may hereafter become entitled to in any way whatsoever, hereby granting to the before mentioned John Vick and Benj. Griffin full power to collect and receive the same to him and his heirs forever, upon this special trust and confidence as hereinafter expressed. And the said Thomas Bewan as well in consideration of the premises as of one dollar to him in hand paid by the said John Vick & Benj. Griffin doth hereby covenant to ratify and confirm the same, releasing any right which vest in him to the said property above designated or any part thereof by virtue of his said intended marriage to the said Dorothy Vick and his heirs forever And the said John Vick and Benjamin Griffin hereby accept the said trust and covenants that he will in relation to the said property

above to him conveyed to act and do as will best effect the object of the parties hereto already set forth, and to fulfill the stipulations and agreements herein after expressed, (set) that he will permit the said Dorothy N. and Thomas to use and enjoy the profits thereof for and during their joint lives retaining in herself the right and title, and so far forth as he thinks proper the possession of the same, and that if the said Dorothy N. should survive the said Thomas that he will convey to her all rights which he derives under this deed and that if the said Dorothy should die leaving the said Thomas that he will convey the same to her heirs at Law, whatsoever they may be unless the said Dorothy N. shall during her lifetime have transferred, granted, bequeathed, devised or appointed the same in manner as herein after provided for, (set). It is hereby covenanted and agreed by and between all the parties hereto that the said Dorothy N. shall at all and any time have full and ample power and authority whenever she may wish to do so, to give, grant and convey the same or any part thereof either such as at this time has vested in her or in the said John Wick Henry Griffin by virtue of this deed or which may hereafter in like manner vest to any person or persons whomsoever according to her own will and pleasure by her Deed signed sealed & delivered, according to Law or on failure to do so as to the whole or any part thereof to devise and bequeath the balance or the whole as the case may be, or any part thereof in like manner by her will duly authenticated which said deed or deed or will shall be as valid as if agreed to and made by all the parties contracting - And it is furthermore covenanted between the parties that should the said John Wick Henry Griffin die any part of the aforesaid trust remain unexecuted that the same is not to pass to his representatives real or personal but to be completed and fulfilled by some fit and proper person recommended by the said Dorothy N. or her granted devisee, legatee, heir or distributee he or they, as the case may be and approved by the Court of the County in which he she or they may at the time reside and by such Court appointed to act as such. In Testimony whereof the parties have herunto set their and affixed their seals the day and year first written.

In presence of
Patrick Dole
Copeland Turner
Matthew Williams

Thomas Devan Seal
Dorothy N. Wick Seal
John Wick Seal
Benj Griffin Seal

Southampton County In the Clerk's Office the 18th day of January 1830. This Indenture was proved by the oaths of Patrick Dole, Copeland Turner and Matthew Williams the witnesses thereto and admitted to record. And at Court held for the County aforesaid the 15th day of February 1830 The said Indenture was entered upon the proceedings of the day -

Teste James Rochelle Clk

Attest Teste L. R. Edwards Dk

Vicks

to { Exhausted

Buran &c

fit. by self Sep. 3/1832

Southampton March Court 1831.

Benjamin Griffin Executor of Joseph Vick dec^d

Plff^y } In Debt

against
Thomas Bewan & Dorothy N his wife late Dorothy N Vick.
John Vick and Daniel Vick.

Defts

This day came the plaintiff by his attorney and the defendants still failing to appear, on the motion of the plaintiff it is ordered that the judgment entered in the Office against the defendants be made final and that the plaintiff recover against the defendants the sum of One hundred and seventy seven dollars nineteen cents parcel of the debt in the writ in this cause mentioned with legal Interest thereon from the 19th day of January 1829 till paid and his costs by him about his suit in this behalf expended. And the said defendants in Mercy &c.

Plaintiffs Costs \$8.76.

Attest Teste L. R. Edwards DC

The Commonwealth of Virginia to the Sheriff of Southampton County Greeting: We command you that of the goods and chattels of Thomas Bewan & Dorothy N his wife late Dorothy N Vick, John Vick and Daniel Vick late in your bailiwicks you cause to be made the sum of One hundred and seventy seven dollars nineteen cents with legal Interest thereon from the 19th day of January 1829 till paid which Benjamin Griffin Executor of Joseph Vick dec^d lately in our County Court of Southampton hath recovered against the said Bewan wife & John & Daniel Vick for debt. also the sum of eight dollars 76 cents which to the said Griffin Exor as aforesaid in the same Court were adjudged for his costs in that suit expended, whereof they are convicted as appears to us of record, and that you have the said sums of money before the Justices of our said Court, at the Courthouse on the first day of May Court next, to render to the said Griffin Exor as aforesaid of the debt and costs aforesaid. And have them shew this writ. Witness James Rochelle Clerk of our said Court at the Courthouse the 25th day of March 1831 in the 45th year of the Commonwealth.

James Rochelle cl^k

On the back of which execution the Sheriff made the following endorsement & return

"Came to hand Apr. 1/1831."

Debt due Jan'y 19/1829	- \$177. 19
Int: till May 16/1831	24. 80
Costs	<u>8. 76</u>
Shffs Coms.	210. 75
	<u>10. 53</u>
	\$ 221. 28.

Satisfied

Edw. ? Butts depy L
Clements Rochelle Shff.

Vicks

^{no} {leopias

Boran 4^o

filed by pliff. Sep. 3/1830

Southampton June Court 1832.

On the motion of John Click and Daniel Click against Thomas Bevan and Dorothy N Bevan his wife who was Dorothy N Click. This day came the plaintiffs by their Attorney and it appearing to the Court that the defendants have had legal notice of this motion they were solemnly called but came not. Therefore it is considered by the Court that the plaintiffs recover against the said defendants the sum of two hundred and twenty one dollars and twenty eight cents (that being the amount paid by the plffs as securities on a bond executed by Dorothy N Click before her intermarriage with the said Thomas Bevan, to Benjamin Griffin Esq of Joseph Click, upon which a judgment has been obtained against the said Thomas Bevan & Dorothy N Bevan and the said John Click and Daniel Click as securities) with interest thereon from the 16th day of May 1832 till paid, and their costs by them about their motion in this behalf expended. And the said defendants in Mercy &c.

Plaintiffs costs \$5.54

Attest Teste James Rochelle clk

The Commonwealth of Virginia. To the Sheriff of Southampton County Greeting. We command you that you take Thomas Bevan and Dorothy N Bevan his wife who was Dorothy N Click if they be found within your bailiwick and them safely keep, so that you have their bodies before the Justices of our County Court of Southampton at the Courthouse on the first day of August next to satisfy John Click and Daniel Click the sum of two hundred and twenty one dollars twenty eight cents with legal interest thereon from the 16th day of May 1831 till paid which the said John Click and Daniel Click lately in our said Court have recovered against the said Bevan and Wife by motion: also five dollars fifty four cents for their costs in that behalf expended, whereof the said Bevan & wife are convicted as appears to us of record. And have them there this writ. Witness James Rochelle Clerk of our said Court at the Courthouse the 28th day of June 1832 in the 55th year of the Commonwealth.

James Rochelle clk

Sheriff's return &c. - "Came to hand July 9/1831. Executed on the defendants, and the defendant Thomas Bevan took the benefit of the Act of Assembly providing for the relief of insolvent debtors and was discharged

from custody - The defendant Dorothy A Beman took the benefit of the prison rules and entered into bond with security according to Law, which bond is, herewith returned. Jesse Drenvy depy. of Clements Rochelle Shff. -

July 15th 1831. A List of property given in as a schedule this day by and Thomas Beman to satisfy a debt due from my wife before my marriage to her the property now named I give up all right and interest to satisfy the debt due John Click and Daniel Click as it appears a debt paid by them as her security - The following property -

A list of articles which she has taken from our dwelling - 2 feather beds & shades - 5 spotted figured blankets - 7 pair sheets, 2 white blankets - 4 bed quilts - 4 Counterpane - 1 bridle and saddle - 1 gig harness - half dozen silver table spoons - half dozen silver tea spoons - 1 horse and razor - 3 trunks - several band boxes - 1 marble mortar - 2 Brass candlesticks - 1 large bible and other books - 1 window curtain - towels - 1 jug - 4 or 5 bottles, 1 gun - 2 wash bowls - 3 chamber pots - 2 trays - several waters - 1 waffle iron - cups & saucers - pots pitchers bowls - 4 or 5 table cloths - and several glass tumblers.

A Debt due Thomas D Heath from Dorothy A Click now my wife, being sued with her and a marriage contract being recorded between us, getting a Judgment against me act. to Law I give a schedule of all my interest if any in the contract, and since then have given a deed for my interest in the lower land if any. Therefore I have no property to give up in a schedule this day but what I have heretofore given up, but if any comes to my knowledge or recollection it will be given up - and all my outstanding debts are assigned over to pay my lawful debts -

Thomas Beman

Left unsold at the sale of Waddles against me and wife - Scales & weights, and a pair of winding blades, one over that has no lid, the 3 articles and all I have in my possession.

Thomas Beman

Schedule of property belonging to Dorothy A Beman made the second day of November 1831.

Interest in the lands of the late Joseph Click - 2 feather beds - three spotted blankets - four bed quilts - three white figured counterpanes - Eleven pair of sheets - fourteen pillow cases - ten towels - four toilet cloths - Seven window curtains & one chadle quilt - four dozen earthen plates - two pewter plates - two tin baking pans - about a dozen

cups and two dozen saucers - two sugar dishes - eight bowls - two wash bowls - one teapot - two china bowls - one large china saucer - one china butter plate - half a dozen silver table spoons - Five silver tea spoons - one large oven & lid, two looking glasses - three trunks - four chamber pots - three or four wine glasses - Five or six tumblers - two bedsteads - two water pails - Interest in the estate of Robert Watkins estate - one dressing box - Interest in the land given to John Click and Daniel Click by their father the late Joseph Click - all interest in the property now in possession of Thomas Beman and all claims against the said Beman of every nature whatsoever. Three or four barrels and kegs - One bed side carpet - two candle sticks - one work basket - one old umbrella - my interest in two tracts of land belonging to the estate of Joseph Click - viz - The Pear tree tract, and the Saylor tract - three pitchers - 3 milk pots - 1 Noggini -

D. A. Beman

This Indenture made and entered into this 2^d day of November 1831 Between Dorothy A Beman wife of Thomas Beman of the County of Southampton of the one part and Clements Rochelle Sheriff of the said County of the second part. Whereas the said Dorothy A Beman is in custody of the said Sheriff by virtue of an Execution sued out of the Clerk's office of the County Court of Southampton against Thomas Beman and Dorothy A Beman his wife at the suit of John Click and Daniel Click and the said Dorothy A Beman at the suit of John Click and Daniel Click and the said Dorothy A Beman in order to avail herself of the benefit of the Act of Assembly for the relief of Insolvent Debtors has delivered in a schedule of her Estate and among other things hath surrendered all the lands held by her as dower in the lands of her former husband Joseph Click viz: one tract containing one hundred and thirty one acres, the other tract containing one hundred and twelve acres - And the said Dorothy A Beman hath been required to execute and deliver a deed pursuant to the Act of Assembly in that case made and provided. Now therefore the said Dorothy A Beman as well for and in consideration of the premises as of the further consideration of the sum of one dollar to her in hand paid by the said Clements Rochelle Sheriff as aforesaid, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged hath given, granted, bargained and sold, aliened, conveyed & confirmed and by these presents doth give, grant, bargain and sell unto the said Clements Rochelle Sheriff as aforesaid his heirs and assigns, all her the said Dorothy A Beman, right, title and interest and claims in and

To the aforesaid Lands held by her as her dower in the lands of her former husband Joseph Klicker dec^d. To have and to hold the aforesaid land with all and singularly its appurtenances unto him the said Clements Rochelle his heirs and assigns, ~~to~~ the only proper use and behoof of him the said Clements Rochelle Sheriff as aforesaid his heirs and assigns forever. And the said Dorothy A. Bewan for herself her heirs, Executors & assigns her interest in and to the before mentioned parcels of land and premises with the appurtenances unto the said Clements Rochelle Sheriff as aforesaid, free from the claim or claims of her the said Dorothy A. Bewan and her heirs, and of all and every person or persons whatsoever shall and will warrant and forever defend by these presents. In witness whereof the said Dorothy A. Bewan hath hereunto set her hand and affixed her seal the day and year first above written.

D. A. Bewan (Seal)

Signed, sealed & delivered

In presence of
James Inzant

Benj. Devany

John McLaughan

Copied Teste

James Rochelle lcl